
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN bISTW CT OF FLORIDA

Case No.

18 U.S.C. j 1349
18 U.S.C. j 1343
18 U..S.C. j 2
18 U.S.C. j 1031(a)
18 U.S.C. j 982(a)(7)

UM TED STATES OF AM ERICA

KENIA VALLE BOZA,

Defendant.
/

INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At a11 times m aterial to this Indictment:
. 
'

The M edicare Prozram

The Medicare Program (lth4edicare'') was a federally funded progrnm that provided

free' or below-cost health care benefits to certain individuals, primarily the elderly, blind, and

disabled. The benefits available tmder M edicare were govem ed by federal statutes and regulations.

The United States Department of Hea1th and Human Serdces (ûçHHS''), through its agency, the

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (&çCMS''), oversaw and administered Medicare.

Individuals who received benefits under M edicare were

ttbeneficiaries.''

comm only refen'ed to as M edicre

M edicare was subdivided into multiple progrnm lGparts.'' M edicare Part A covered
. 

'

health services provided by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, hospices, and home health
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agencies. M edicare PM  B covered, nmong other things, medical services provided by physicians,

m edical clinics, laboratories, and other qualified health care providers, such as office visits, minor

slzrgical procedures, and laboratory testing, that were medically necessary and ordered by licensed

medical doctors orother qualifed health care providers. M edicare Part also known as

lçM edicare Advantagep'' provided benesciaries with the option to feceive their M edicare benefits

through private managed health care plans,including health maintenance organizations and

preferred provider orgnnizations. Health care providers, whether tmder Medicare Part A, B, or C,

that provided and supplied items and services to beneficiaries were refen'ed to as tlproviders.''

Medicare and Medicare Advantage .were Gûhealth care benefit prögrnmlsjy'' as

defned by Title 18, United States Code, Section 2441$.

M edicare Advantage plans provided beheficiaries with the same services provided

by an original fee-for-service M edicare plan, in addition to mandatory supplemental benefts and

optional supplemental benefits.

To receive M edicare Advantage benefhs, a beneficiary was required to enroll in a

managed care plan operated by a private company that had entered into a contract with CM S to

offer one or more M edicare Advantage plans. Those'companies were'often referred to as M edicare

Advantagevorganizations (G4MAOs'').A beneficiary's enrollment in a Medicare Advantage plan

was voluntary.

Rather than reimbursing based on the extent of the services provided, as in originjl

M edicare, CM S made fixed, monthly payments to an M A.0 for each M edicare beneficiary enrolled

in one of thç M AO's plans, regardless of the services rendered to the beneficiary that m onth or the

cost of covering the beneticiary's health benefits that m onth. Theso paym ents w ere referred to as

çlcapitation'' payments.CMS periodically adjusted the capitation payment associated with each
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benefcialy. CM S determined a beneficiazy's capitation payment based on a variety of factors,

including the beneficialy's age and gender and whether the beneficiary resided in an inpatient

facility.

ln addition, the size of a capitation payment was adjusted based on the beneficiary's

health status. CM S generally made larger capitation payments for beneficiaries with more serious

medical conditions. CM S determined a benefici,ary's health sta'tus in part based on medical

diagnoses submitted by the M AO sponsoring the beneficiary's M edicare Advantage' plan. W hen

a provider treated a beneficimy, the provider reported the beneficiary's diagnoses to the M AO.

The MAO, in tttrn, repprted these diagnoses to CM S via interstate wire. For the period on or after

October 16, 2001, through September 30, 2015, diagnoses were reported to CM S using codes

specified in the Ninth Edition of the International Classifkation of Diseases (G:ICD-9 codes'i). For

the pedod on or after October 1, 2015, diagnoses were reported to CM S using codes specified in

the Tenth Revision of the Intemalional Classification of Diseases CGICD-IO codes''). CMS used

these diagnosis codes to adjust the capitation payment associated with the beneficiary.

8. M AOs and providers often uséd administrative employees called tlcoders'' to help

translate details from a patient's medical records, such as the patient's medical chart.or progress

notes, into the codes that M Aos submitted to CM S. Coders translated the medical diagnoses that

were made by providers into the codes that the plans submitted to CM S.

9. CM S grouped certain diagnosis codes im o categories of clinically related medical

diagnoses called Hierarchical Condition Categories (G1HCCs'').The diagnosis codes that CM S

grouped into HCCS generally included major, severe, and chronic conditions. CMS used the HCCS

triggered by the diagnosis codes subm itted by M Aos as well as demographic data to calctzlate

payments for each beneficiary. This proçess was known as GGrisk adjustment.''
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10. These risk adjustment pàyments by CMS to MAos were made in the year after a

M edicaze benelicialy was treated by ;t provider. The year that a benefciary was treated by a

provider and diagnosed with risk-adjusting conditions wàs lcnown as the Gçsenice yean'' The year

'jhat CMS made the risk-adjusted payments based on those diagnoses (the following year) was

lcnown as the ûlpayment year.'' CM S made these payments to the MAO on a per-member-per-

month basis via interstate wire.

CMS required that, for a diagnosis to be slibmitted for risk adjustment ptuposes,

the diagnosis needed to be docllmented in the beneficiary's medical record, and it needed to be

docllmented as a result of a face-to-face encotmter with an acceptable provider type. For outpatient

encotmters at medical clinics, CM S provided a list of acceptable provider types that could make

and document risk adjustment diagnoses, wllich included, among others, medical doctors, certain

types (?f nurses, and physician.assistants. A coder was not an acceptable provider type to m ake

and docllment risk adjustment diagnoses.

M AOs wem required to operate their Medicare Advantagç plans in cömpliance with

the requirem ents of their contracts with CM S, applicable federal 1aw and regulations, and CM S'S

policies. Futthennore, the MAOs were required to certify to CM S that the risk adjustment data

submitted to UM S was acctlrate, complete, and tnlthful.

Certain Risk-Adiustinz M edical Diaanoses

ççother Hemoglobinopathies'' was a dsk-adjusting diagnosis that was reported to

CM. S using ICD-9 code 282.7 and ICD-IO code D58.2. Other Hemoglobinopathies consisted bf

irlherited blood disorders that affected red blood cells. Specifically, Other Hemoglobinopathies

involved abnormal production or structtzre of hem oglobin, the protein in red blood oells that carried

oxygen. Symptoms of 'Other Hemoglobinopathies included anern'iaa weakness @nd fatigue, and

Case 1:23-cr-20417-KMW   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 10/24/2023   Page 4 of 17



shortness of breath.

14. lrisorder of Carbohydrate Metabolism, Unspecified'' was a risk->djusting

diagnosis that was reported to CM S. using ICD-9 code 271.9 and ICD-IO code E74.9. Disorder of

Carbohydrate M etabolism, Unspecifed was a disorder that affected the body's ability to break

down carboùydrates.Symptoms of Disorder of Carbohydrate Metabolism, Unspecified included

wenkness, sweating, confllsion, and kidney stones.

The Defendant and Relevant Entities

Dçfendant KENJA VALLE BOZA, a resident of M iami-Dade County, was

certitied by the American Association of Professional C, oders(ççAAPC'') as among others, a

Certised Professional Coder. KENIA VAI,LE BOZA was an employee of Pasteur M edical

Center, Inc-, and its related entities (collectively, ûTastetlr'), and held various titles, including

Coding Manager (from in or arotmd 2015, through in or arotmd 2016) and Medicare Risk

Adjustment Manager (from in or arotmd 2016, through in or around 2017). KENIA VAI,LE

BOZA was employed by Healthstm Health Plans, Inc. (GEHea1thSun''), as the Director of Medicare

Risk Adjustment Analytics âom in or arotmd August 2017, tllrough in or around January 2020.

16. Healthstm was a company organized under the laws of the Statç of Florida whose

jrincipal place of business was Miami, Florida. Healthsun was an MAO that contracted with

CM S to operate one or m ore M edicare Advantage plans serving beneficiaries in M iam i-Dade and

Broward Cotmties.

Pastetzr was a group of companies that operated several m edical clinics in M inm i-

Dade and BroFard Cotlqties. Beginnipg in or around Novem ber 2016, Pasteur was owned by

Healthsun. At all' relevant tim es, Pasteur contracted with Healthsun to provide health cm'e

services to beneticiades enrolled in Healthstm's M edicare Advantage plans. Pastettr, in ttu'n,
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contracted with prim ary care and other physicians to provide health care services to benetk iaries

enrolled in Healthstm's M edicare Advantage plans.

COUNT I
Conspiracy to Com m it Health Care Fraud and W ire Fraud

(18 U.S.C. j 1349)

Paragraphs 1 through 17 of the General Allegations section of this lndictment are

re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

2. From in or. arotmd October 2015, and continuing through in or around January

2020, in M iami-Dade and Broward Cotmties, in the Southem Distdct of Flozida, and elsewhere,

the defendant,

KEM A VALLE BOZA ,

did knowingly and willfully, that is, with the intent to furthe!- the objects of the conspiracy,

combine, conspire, corlfederate, and agree with other persons known and unknown to the Grand

Jury to commit offenses against the United States, that is:

to knowingly and willfully execute a scheme and artifice to defraud a health

care benefit progrnm affecting com m erce, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section

24(b), that isy Medicare Advantage, and to obtain, by means of materially false and fraudulent

pretenses, representations,' and promises, money and property owned by, mld tmder the custody

and control of, said health care benefit program, in connection with the delivery of and payment

for health care benefts, items, and seyvices, in violation of Title 18,, United States Code, Section

1347,. and

to lcnowingly, and with the intent to defraud, devise, and intend to devise, a

scheme and artifice to defraud, and for obtaining mone# and property by means of materially false

and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing the pretenses, representations,

6
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and prom ises were false and fraudulent when m ade, and 'for the purpose of executing the scheme

and artifice, transm it and cause to be transm itted by m eans of wire com mtmication in interstate

and foreign commerce, certain m itings, signs, signals, pictures, and sotmds, in violation of Title

18, United States Code, Section 1343.

Purpose of the Conspiracv

It w as a purpose of the conspiracy for KENIIA VAIaLE BOZA and her co-

conspirators to unlawfully enrich themselves atld Healthstm' by, nmong other things: (a) falsely

diagnosing and causing others to falsely diagnose beneficiaries in Healthsun's M edicare

Advantpge plans with risk-adjusting conditions without regard to whether the beneficiary actually

had the conditions', (b) having coders enter dsk-adjusting conditions directly imo the medical

records of beneficiaries enrolled in Healthsun's Medicare Advantage plans; (c) having coders use

the login credentials assigned to Pastelzr's physicians to access Pasteur's electronic medical record

IIGEMR''I system and enter risk-adjusiing conditions directly into the medical records of

beneficiaries emolled in Hçalthstm's Medkare Advantage plans, falsely m)d fraudulently making

it appearthat the physiciaps were diagnoying the beneficiaries with those risk-adjusting çonditionj;

(d) causing Healthstm to submit false and fraudulent diagnosis codes to CMS based on those risk-

adjusting conditionsj thereby âaudulently increasing the payments made by CMS to Healthstm;

(e) concealing the submission of the false and fraudulent diagnosis codes; and (9 continuing to

receive and increase the 4mount of compensation froin Healthsun by falsely and fraudulently'

raising the amotmt that CM S paid to Healthsun.
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The m alm er and m eans

M anner and M eans

by which defendant KENIA VALLE BOZA and her co-

conspirators sought to accomplish the object and pprpose of the conspiracy included, nmong other

things :

4.

M edicare Advantage plans for health care services provided by Pasteur and others.

Healthstm ènrolled vulnerable beneficiaries in the Sputhern District of Florida in

KENIE VAI,LE BOZA supervised and directed the activities of Pasteur's coders

and others in obtaining beneficialy information and preparing encolmter information about

beneficiaries' medical conditions that were submitted to CM S on behalf of Healthstm.

6. KENIA VAIULE BOZA and others obtained the login credentials assigned to

Pastetlr's physicians to wrongfully access Pastetlr's EM lk system as the physicians, rather than

with their own login credentials.

KENIA VALLE BOZA and others entered false and gaudulent infoimation into

'beneficiaries'.medical records to increase teimbursement f'rom CM S .to Healthstm.

KENIA VALLE BOZA and others falsely and fraudulently entered, and caused

others to enter, diagnoses of Other Hemoglobinopathies and Disorder of Carbohydrate

M etabolism, Unspecified into the medical records of beneficiaries erlrolled in Healthsun's

M edicare Advantage plans based on those beneficiaries having an elevated HbA lc test result,

knowing that an elevated HbAlc test result was not a proper basis for diagnosing either of those

conditions. KENIA V AI,LE BOZA and others entered these diagnoses into the beneficiades'

m edical records through Pasteur's EM R system , regardless of whether the beneficiary actually had

the conditions.

8
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9. KEM A VAI,LE BOZA and others caused Pasteur coders to falsely and

fiaudulently enter tens of thousands of other risk-:djusting diagnoses directly into the medical

records of beneficiades enrolled in Healthstm's M edicare Advantage plans. The Pasteur coders

entered these diagnoses into the beneficiaries' medical records, through Pasteur's EM R system,

while logged in with their own credentials.

10. KENIA VAT,LE BOZA and others caused Pastetlr coders to obtain and use Pastetzr

hysicians' credentials to 1og in to Pasteur's EMR system as the physicians and falsely arlctP

gaudulently enter tens of thousands of risk-adjusting diagnoses directly into the medical records

of beneficiaries enrolled in Healthstm's M edicare Advantage plans. These . risk-adjusting

diagnoses appeared to have been made and docllmented by the physicians when, in truth and fact,

the risk-adjusting conditions were entered into benetkiaries' medical records by coders, often days

or Feeks after the physician saw the benetièiary.

K EM A VALLE BOZA and others caused to be subm itted to Healthstm, and, in

turn, CM S, false and fraudulent diagnosis codes for beneficiades enrolled in Healthstm's

M edicare Advantage plans. The false and fraudulent diagnoses included, among others, Other

Hemoglobinopathies and Disorder of Carbohydrate M etabolism, Unspecified.

12 . The false arid fraudulent diagnoses caused CM S to increase the capitation payments

it m ade to Healthsun via interstate wire.

In total, KENG  VALLE BOZA and others caused to be subm ittçd to Healthstm,

and, in tum, CM S, false and gaudulent diagnosis codes that increased M edicare's payments to

Healthstm by more than $12 million.

All in violation of Title 18, Urlited States Code, Seçtion 1349.

9
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COUNTS 2-3
W ire Fraud

(18 U.SkC. jj 1343 and 2)

Paragraphs 1 through 17 of the General Allegations section of fllis Indictment are

re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set fbrth herein.

From in or around October 2015, and continuing through in or around January
N .

2020, in M inmi-Dade and Broward Cotmties, in the Southem District of Florida, and elsewhere,

the defendant,

KENIA VALLE BOZA,

did knowingly, and with the intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to

defmud and to obtain money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretensqs,

representations, 'and prom ises, knowing that such pretenses, representations, and promises were

false and fraudnlent when made, did knowingly trapsmit and cause.to be transmitted, by meâns of
. 

'

wire complmication in interstate commerce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds

for the pupose of executing such a scheme and artificç, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 1343.

Purpose of the Schem e and Artifice

The Purpose of the Conspiracy section of Cotmt 1 of this lndictmeùt is re-alleged

and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein as a description of the purpose of

the scheme and artifice.
:'

The.schem e and Artifice

The M nnner and M eans section of Cotmt 1 of this lndictment is re-alleged and

incorporated by reference as though fdlly set fol'th herein as a description of the scheme and

artifice.

10
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Use of W ires

:
Op or about the dates set fprth as to each count below, in M iami-Dade and Broward

Counties, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

K ENIA VALLE BOZA,

did knowingly, and with the intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to

defraud and to obtain money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and promises, knowing that such pretenses, representations, and promises were

false and frapdulent when made, did knowingly transmit and cause to be transmitted, by means of

wire communication.in interstate commerce, certain m itings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds

for the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice, as set forth below:

Count On or About Date Description of Interstate W ire

Electrpnic fnnds transfer of approximately $78,838,112
initiated âom outside the state of Florida and transmitted to
D M organ Chase in the Southem District of Florida for risk-1 1/30/2018

. adjusted capitated payments relating to service yça.r 2017

CM S risk-ad'usted ca itation a ment to Healthstm
Electronic funds t'ransfer of approximately $89,761,645

' 

initiated from outside of the state of Florida and tranqmitted to
JpM organ Chase in the Southem District of Florid; for risk-3 2/1/2019
adjusted capitated payments relating to service year 2018

CM S risk-ad'usted ca itation a m ent to Healthstm

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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COUNTS 4-6
M ajor Fraud Against the Unitçd States

(18 V.S.C. jj 1031(a) and 2)

Paragraphs 1 through 17 of the General Allegations section of this Indictment are

re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

From in or arotmd October 2015, and continuing through in or around January

2020, in M iami-Dade and Broward Counties, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere,

the defendant,

KENIA VAT,LE BO ZA,

did knowingly execute, and attem pt to execute, a scheme and artifice with the intent to defraud the
' t ;

Urlited States and to obtain money and property by means of matèdally false and fraudulent
!

pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing that such pretènses, representations, and
:

promises were false and fraudulent when made, in a contract, subcàntract, subsidy, guarantee,

insurance, and other fonn of Federal assistance, the value of such coùtract, subcontract, subsidy,
' :

guarantee, insurance, and form of Fedçral asslstance, and any coljstiment part thereof, being
7,

$1,000,000 or more.

Purpose of the Scheme and Artifce
. E

The Purpose of the Conspiracy section of Cotmt 1 of ihis lndictment is re-alleged
:
7

and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein as a dçscription of the purpose of

the schçm e and artitk e.

The Schem e and Artitk e

The M nnner and M eans section of Cotmt 1 of this Indictm ent is re-alleged and

incorporated by reference as though ftzly set forth herein as a description of the scheme and

artifice.
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Acts in Execution or Attem pted Execùtion of the Schem e and A rtifice

1 .

5. On or about the dates set forth as to each cotmt below , in M iami-Dade and Broward

Cotmties, in the Southem District of Flprida, and elsewhere, the defendant, KENIA VALLE

BOZA, did lcnowingly execute, and attempt to execute, a schçme and artifice with the intent to

defraud the United States and to obtain money and property by rheans of materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing that the pretenses, representations,

. and promises were false and'fraudulent Fhen made, in a contract, subcontract, subsidy, guarantee,

insurance, and other form of Federal assistance, the value of such contract, subcontract, subsidy,

guaranteej itlstlrance, and form of Fedçral assistance, and any constituent part thereof, being

$1,000,000 or more, through the following executions and attempted executions of the scheme and

artifice:

Cèunt Bèneficiary bescription pf False and Approx. Date Approx. Date
Fraudulent Diqgnosis Diagnosis Diagnosis Code

Entered into Subm itted to
M edical Record M edicare

4 , E.R. E74.9 Disorder of 6/7/2017 6/15/2017
Carbohydrate M etabolism ,

Uns ecified
s S.Q. E74.9 Disor'der of 6/20/2017. 6/30/2017

. Carbohydrate M etabolism,
Uns ecifed

6 M .G. ' E74.9 Disorder of 6/7/2017 9/15/2017
Carbohydrate.Metabolism,

. uns ecified

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1031(.a) and 2.

FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS

(18 V.S.C. j 982(a)(7))

1. The allegations of this lndictment are re-alleged and by this mference fully

incorporated herein for alleging forfeiture to the United States of certain property in which the

defendr t, KENIA VALLE BOZA, has an interest.
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2. Upon conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343

and/or 1349, as alleged in this Indictm ent, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States any

. property, real or personal, that constitm es or is derived, directly or indirectly, from  gross proceeds

' 

traceable to, the commission of the offense, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section

982(a)(7).

3. lf any ofthe property subject to forfeitme, as a reyult of any act or omission of the

defendant: .

a. cnnnot be located upon the exercise of duç diligence;

' '. b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

c. has bren placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
' 

d. has been substantially diminished in vplue; or

e. Vs been commingled with other property which calmot be divided without

difficulty;

' ' ' the United States shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property tmder the provisions of Title '

' 21, United States Code, Section 853û9.

( .. ' .

J '

14

j n . 't . . . '' . .
. . . ' . '' . ,.., . . . . .

j . .. . . . .' 
. ' : . .
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A1l plzrsuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(7) and (a)(4), and the

procedures set forth in Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, as made applicable by Title 18,

Urlited States Code, Section 982(b).

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

/ -

ARKENZ APOW TE
ITED S A S ATTORN EY

SOUTHE D STRICT OF FLORIDA

GLENN s. LEON , CHIEF
CRIM INAL DIVISION, FRAUD SECTION
U.s. DEPAIW M ENT OF JUSTICE

...A

YYJOI-IN (FRITZ) SCANLONsslsTu'r CHIEF
CRIM INAL DIVISION, FRAUD SECTION
u .s. DBPARTM ENT OF JUSTICE

Case 1:23-cr-20417-KMW   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 10/24/2023   Page 15 of 17



UNITED STATES DISTRW T COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLOIUDA

UNITED STATMS 9F AMERICA

V.

KENIA VALLE BOZA,
/

Defendant.

Cèurt Division (select one)
IBI Miami E'n. Key W est L' FTP
IZI FTL EI W PB

1 do hereby certify that:
1. l have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number of probable

witnesses and the legal complexities of the Indictment/lnformation attached hereto.

l am aware that the information supglied on this statement will be relied upofl by the Judges of this Court in setling
their calendars and scheduling crimlnal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial Act, Title 28 U.S.C. j3161.

CASE NO.:

CERTIFICATE OF TQIAT, ATTORNEY

Superseding Case Information:
New Defendantts) (Yes or No)

tNew DefendantsNumber o
Total number of counts

lnterpreter: (Yes or No) No
List language and/or dialect:

10 days for the pm ies to try
.4. This case pill take

Please check appropriate category and type of offense listed below:
(Check only one) . (Check only one)
1 L. 0 to 5 days D Petty
11 Z 6'.to 10 days EI Minor
III E1 '11 to 20 days E1 Misdemeanor
IV E-Z 21 to 60 days E Felony
v L' 61 days and over

Has this case been previ.ously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) XO
If yes, Judge ' Case No.
Has a copplaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) No
lf yes, M agistrate Case No.
D his çase relate to a previously filed matter in this District Court? (Yes or No) Nooes t
If yes, Judge' Case No.

9. Defendantts) in federal custody as of
10. Defendantts) in state custody as of
11. Rule 20 from the ' District of
l2. Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yeq or No) No
13. Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office

prior to Augttst 8, 2014 (Mag. Judge Shaniek Maynard? (Yes or No) No
Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office
prior to Oçtober 3, 2019 (Mag. Judge Jared Strauss? (Yes or No) No

l5. Did this matter involve the participation of or consultation with now M agistrate Judgq Eduardo 1. Sanchez
. during his tenure at the Uks. Attorney's Office, which concluded on January 22, 20237 NO

B : ''y
-F-e-1 HN ScAxLox

DOJ Trial Attorney
Coul't ID No. A5502516
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DtSTRICT OF FLORIUAsotlTllElzx

PENALTY SHEET

' 

. Defehdant's Nam e: KENIA VALLE BOZA

Case No:

Count #: 1
... ,. ' h '- : ' . - ( r Q' ' . 

' ' 

. 
- ' 

. 
'
. ) . - . è ' ' .

.- . s?,f.è;s ....
' '

-. Tiile.wyl-8wt-IJ- uitèdsàtàtes-codet seetion..1349 .-- -.-.-z'- . -.-.'-- -. -.'tt'----..- è '''--.-- .-. '--v. . . ' ' -.-.'--. .. ' . -, - -' ' . . --'.. .

Conspiracv to Commit Health Care Fraud and W ire Fraud
* M ax. Term of Imprlsonmeht: 1ù years

' 

* M andatory Min. Term of lmptisonment (if applicable): N/A
* M ax. Supervised Release: 3 years
* M ax. Fipe: $250,000 or twice the gross gain or Ioss from the offense

' ' . . ' -

Counts #: 2 - 3

Title 18s United States Codes Section 1343

W ire Frapd
* M ax. Tetm'of Imprisonm ent: 20 years aj to each count

. * M andatorj Min. Term of Imprisonment (if àppliéable): N/A
, ' ' .

' '' 
* M ax. Sppervised Release: 3 years as to each count '

' - ih k ax. Fifw: . $230j000 or twice thç gross gain or Ioss fkom the offense .

Cotmtq #: 4 - 6
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M aior Fraud Aaainst the United States
* M ax. Term  of lm prisonm ent: 10 years as to each count
o ' , .Mandatory M in. Term of Imprisonment (if applicpble): N/A
* M :x Supervised Release: 3 years

' * Max. Fine: $10 miilion .
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. . frRefers onlv .to possible term of ihcarcerations.sppervised.. release and fines. It does not include' ' . G .K . '' . 
'' . .1*. . '!.

K 

.: . ' ' 
. restitqtioh, special assessmenp, parotç tèizms,.pr forfeitutes thatom ay be applicable.
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